
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

**** COMMISSIONER’S MEETING ROOM, GROUND FLOOR, SUITE 16**** 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 

January 8, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

*** The meeting will be live streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook Page. 

 

1. Call to Order (6:00 p.m.)                                  

NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 

DISTRICT 1 – SHEILA G. JONES, VICE-CHAIR     

DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY     

DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN, CHAIR     

DISTRICT 4 – ASHER GRAY     

DISTRICT 5 - STEVEN LEDFORD     

  

 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       

III.    Invocation – District 1 

         

 IV.    Approval of Agenda 

         

 V.      Consent Agenda –  

1.  Approval of Minutes: 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- December 11, 2023 

• Work Session Minutes- December 29, 2023 

 

2.   Check Register – Check #’s     069936 - 070141 

 

VI.   Public Hearings with Business Action 

Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as rezoning, 

ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the County 

Commissioners.  Following the public hearing. The Board of Commissioners will act on each item 

presented below.  

 

1. A Public Hearing will be held for an update of the FY 2023 Capital Improvements Element 

(CIE) of Jasper County's Development Impact Fee Program as required annually by the 

Department of Community Affairs. 

 

Business Item 1:  2023 Capital Improvements Element Update 

Bu 

Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not more than ten 

(10) minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens, county employees or other events by the 

Commissioners.  

1. Stanton Springs Update Provided by the Joint Development Authority 

 

The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the Commission 

for not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney will keep time.  Please  

be courteous of the 3-minute time limit. Comments noted from citizens via the Jasper County FB Page. 

VIII. Citizens Comments 

VII. Presentations/Delegations 



XIII. Executive Session 

 

 

IX. County Commissioner Items & Updates 

 

X.   Regular Agenda  

 

Business Items: Appointments 

2. Appointment of Chairman 

3. Appointment of Vice-Chairman 

4. Appointment of County Attorney 

5. Appointment of County Clerk 

 

Business Items Continued: 

6. Reform and Improve Mental Health Services Resolution Recommended by ACCG 

7. 2024 Turtle Cove POA’s Alcohol License 

8. No Thru Trucks Signage on County Roads for Installation on State Routes 

9. Jasper County Joint Comprehensive Plan 2023 Update – Adoption 

10. FY 2024 CIE Update, Scope of Work and Timeline 

11. Set Qualifying Fees for 2024 Elections 

12. Open New Bank Account for the 2024 SPLOST Funds 

13. Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 

 

XI.   County Attorney Items 

XII.   County Manager Update 

 

Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as provided by O.C.G.A.  

§50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real estate as provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-3(4); 

and discussion on employment, compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided 

in O.C.G.A. § 50-14-3(6)  

 

XIV. Adjournment  

 

 

 

 

  



   Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

December 11, 2023 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

6:00 P.M. 

 

Chairman Jernigan called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

Commissioners Present: Don Jernigan, Chairman; Bruce Henry; Steven Ledford and Asher Gray  

 

Staff: Mike Benton, County Manager, Sheila Belcher, Interim Clerk- Administrative Services Director, Larissa 

Ruark, Chief Accounting Officer, Doug Attaway- Planning and Zoning Director, Keldrick Davis- Recreation 

Director.  

Pledge of Allegiance: 

Invocation:  Commissioner Steven Ledford, District 5 

 

Agenda Approval:  Commissioner Gray motioned to approve the agenda with the addition of 911 

Presentation/update.  Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  

 

Consent Agenda:  

Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the following minutes  

 

• Regular Meeting Minutes – October 2, 2023 

• Called Meeting Minutes- October 20, 2023 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- November 6, 2023   

 

Commissioner Gray seconded the motion, passed unanimously.      

 

Commissioner Gray motioned to approve Check #s 069639-069935. Commissioner Ledford seconded the 

motion, passed 3-0 (Commissioner abstained).   

 

Public Hearings: The tract of land is 80.68 acres designed as a Conservation Subdivision with a total of 34 lots  

and 40.1% (33.19 acres) of greenspace. The property has road frontage on both County Line Road and Rocky 

Creek Road (north end of the road). Rocky Creek Road is a local unpaved road which requires improvement 

along the road frontage where it adjoins the existing property per Sec. 105- 222 (a). The approximate amount of 

road frontage along Rocky Creek Road is approximately 801.75+- feet 

 

Developer BCA Enterprises, LLC. is requesting to subdivide two contiguous parcels of land zoned RES 

(residential) into 34 lots as a Conservation Subdivision. The property has road frontage on both County Line 

Road and Rocky Creek Road (north end of the road). The size of property is 80.68 acres (shown as 85 acres on 

QPublic). 

 

Business Item 1: Twinpond Subdivision Preliminary Plat - Approval Request: Commissioner Ledford 

motioned to approve the preliminary plat as presented. Commissioner Henry seconded the motion, passed 

3-1 (Commissioner Gray opposed). 

  

Presentations/Delegations:  

 

Citizens Comments: - 

David Thompson: Mr. Thompson asked about zoning moratoriums. He requested that the board extend the 

moratorium if so. He also asked about greenspace being taxable.  

 

Bill Nash- Mr. Nash stood to let the board know that he is in favor of the grant approval for the Food Bank.  

 



County Commissioner’s Items: 

 

Commissioner Ledford- Commissioner Ledford asked about the progress of the 4-way to be placed at Henderson 

Mill and County Line Roads.  

 

Commissioner Jernigan- Commissioner Jernigan stated that he agrees that the boards need follow-up and 

updates regarding things that are supposed to be done.  

 

Commissioner Jones- Absent 

  

Commissioner Henry- Commissioner Henry made mention of the zoning moratorium. He also stated that we 

should do away the yield plan.  

 

Commissioner Gray- Commissioner Gray mentioned that staff is not keeping up with list of things that are 

supposed to be completed.  

 

Business Items: 

Item Added: 911 Authority- Gail Harrell and Kimberly LeCroy presented the contract that was presented 

previously. They noted that the contractor would not agree to changing the contract to make Georgia the venue 

for disagreements or legal issues. 

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the funding for the contract with APCO. Commissioner Gray 

seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  

 

Item 2:   Renewal of 2024 Alcohol Licenses 

 

-  Tyson’s Country Store, Application number 2023-A-001 located at 22044 Hwy 11 North., 

Monticello, GA 31064. Name of applicant: Lisa Whitaker Wilkerson – Retail sales of beer and wine 

– Renewal:  

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the license renewal. Commissioner Gray seconded the 

motion, passed unanimously.  

- Frank’s Restaurant, Application number 2023-A-002 located at 11818 Hwy 212 West 

Covington, GA 30014. Name of applicant: Vivian Castellana Fuller – Pouring license for distilled 

spirits, beer, and wine. – Renewal 

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the license renewal. Commissioner Gray seconded the 

motion, passed unanimously 

 

- Lakeview Marina, Application number 2023-A-003 located at 8726 Jackson Lake Road 

Monticello, GA 31064.  Name of applicant: Shabanali Jabbarcheloei – Retail sales of beer and wine 

– Renewal 

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the license renewal. Commissioner Gray seconded the 

motion, passed unanimously 

 

- Lakeview Restaurant, Application number 2023-A-004 located at 8726 B Jackson Lake Road 

Monticello, GA 31064.  Name of applicant: Shabanali Jabbarcheloei – Pouring license for distilled 

spirits, beer, and wine. – Renewal 

 



Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the license renewal. Commissioner Henry seconded the 

motion, passed unanimously 

 

- Convenience Stores, Inc dba Larry’s 4-Way, Application number 2023-A-005 located at 9160 

Hwy 212 West Monticello, GA 31064. Name of applicant: Joann Hedrick – Retail sales of beer and 

wine. – Renewal 

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the license renewal. Commissioner Henry seconded the 

motion, passed unanimously 

 

- Turtle Cove POA, Application number 2023-A-006 located at 222 Clubhouse Drive Monticello, 

GA 31064. Name of applicant: David Michael Levee – Pouring license for distilled spirits, beer, and 

wine. – Renewal 

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to extend the current license until the first meeting in January to 

allow for time for appropriate advertising with the updated information. There will be a 10% penalty 

along with a penalty equaling any cost that the county may incur related to the extension and 

advertising. Commissioner Henry seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  

 

- Sac O Suds, Application number 2023-A-008 located at 54 Hwy 16W Monticello, GA 31064. 

Name of applicant: Cholista Owens - Retail sales of beer and wine – Renewal 

 

Commissioner Gray motioned to approve the license renewal. Commissioner Ledford seconded the 

motion, passed unanimously 

 

- Shane One Stop, Application number 2023-A-009 located at 8541 GA Hwy 142 Shady Dale, GA 

31085.  Name of applicant: Gautamkumar P. Patel - Retail sales of beer and wine – Renewal 

 

Commissioner Gray motioned to approve the license renewal. Commissioner Ledford seconded the 

motion, passed unanimously. 

 

- Hillsboro Mini Mart, Application number 2023-A-012 located at 1750 Hwy 11 S, Hillsboro, GA 

31038. Name of applicant: Nizamuddin Kalya - Retail sales of beer and wine – Renewal 

 

Commissioner Gray motioned to approve the license renewal. Commissioner Ledford seconded the 

motion, passed unanimously. 

Item 3:  Jasper County Family Connection Grant Opportunity from the Department of Family & 

Children Services & Community Prevention Support - Fiscal Agent Request 

 

The Jasper County Family Connection is requesting permission for Jasper County BOC to serve as fiscal agent 

for Department of Family & Children Services & Community Prevention Support Grant in the amount of $15,000.  

This is a three-year commitment from the county from FY 2024 to FY 2026.  Jasper County Family Connection 

will be expected to complete a mid-year and end-of-year report.  Jasper County Family Connection will receive 

half of the approved funds as soon as proposal is approved and second half of funds after approval of mid-year 

report.  Funding is provided annually for the county at a maximum of $15,000.  $10,000 is for strategy 

development and implementation and $5,000 for concrete support for families (food, utilities, etc.) 

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to table the item until the January 12th meeting. Commissioner Gray seconded 

the motion, passed unanimously.  

 



Item 4: Recreation Park New Dugouts Construction Bid Results 

Bid submittals received for constructing eight new dugouts at the Jasper County Recreation Park: 

 

Paul Fields Construction $88,480.00 

The Trezz Group  $58,000.00 

Wade Homes   $60,000.00 

Atlanta Fire & Restoration $74,049.44 

Southern State Services $74,800.00 

 

Contractor Scope of Work: 

Installation of Concrete Pad, Chain-link Fencing and Roof Structure 

 

County Obligation: 

Demolition and Removal of Existing Dugouts 

Site Grading and Drainage 

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to award the Recreation Dugouts bid to the The Trezz Group in the amount of 

$58,000. Commissioner Henry seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  

 

Item 5: Recreation Department New Vehicle Request 

Recreation Director Keldrick Davis presented his request for a new vehicle for his department.  

F-150 -2023 4x2 Super crew  

145” Wheelbase -5.0L V8 engine- Elec Ten-Speed Auto W/Tow M 

Staff was advised to get bids. If bids could not be obtained, get multiple quotes on state contracts.  

 

Item 6: 2023 State Economic and Infrastructure Development Grant Application Submittal Approval – 

Food Bank Project 

 

A SEID grant, if awarded, would be used to supplement Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)federal 

funding to construct a new Jasper County Community Food Bank. The Northeast Georgia Regional 

Commission (NEGRC) submitted a pre-application to SCRC in September and were invited to submit a full 

application for the consideration of funding in the amount of $350,000. The full application is due January 11, 

2024. 

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to authorize Chairman to sign resolution# 2023-1211-1 approving submission 

of Southeast Crescent Regional Commission grant application by the NEGRC. Commissioner Henry seconded 

the motion, passed unanimously.  

 

Item 7: 2024 Board of Commissioner Meeting Dates Approval:  

The meeting dates for 2024 are listed as follows: 

Monday, January 8th    

Monday, February 5th   

Monday, March 4th   

Monday, April 1st   

Monday, May 6th  

Monday, June 3rd   

Monday, July 1st  

Monday, August 5th       

Monday, September 9th 

Monday, October 7th    

Monday, November 4th   

Monday, December 2nd   



Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the 2024 meeting dates as presented. Commissioner Henry 

seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  

 

Item 8:  2024 Holiday Approval 

The BOC has provided county employees with 13 paid holidays each year.  

 

See proposed list of Tentative Holidays for 2024. 

• New Year’s Day Monday, January 1, 2024 

• Martin Luther King Day Monday, January 15, 2024 

• President’s Day, Monday, February 19, 2024 

• Good Friday, March 29, 2024 

• Memorial Day Monday, May 27, 2024 

• Juneteenth, Wednesday, June 19, 2024 

• Independence Day Thursday, July 4, 2024 

• Labor Day Monday, September 2, 2024 

• Veterans Day Monday, November 11, 2024 

• Thanksgiving Day Thursday, November 28, 2024 

• Day after Thanksgiving, Friday, November 29, 2024 

• Christmas Eve, Tuesday, December 24, 2024 

• Christmas Day, Wednesday, December 25, 2024 

 

Commissioner Henry motioned to approve the 2024 Holidays as presented. Commissioner Ledford seconded 

the motion passed unanimously. 

 

Item 9: Human Resources and County Boards Report  

HR Director Sheila Belcher presented the quarterly Human Resources report.  

 

Current Open Positions 

EMT  

Paramedics  

911 Dispatchers 

Building Inspector 

Code Enforcement Officer 

Public Works Mechanic 

 

New Hires/Transfers 

Administration-1 

Sheriff Office – 2 

Public Works/ Landfill– 1 

Human Resources (Role Change)- 1 

Senior Center- 2 

Recreation– 1 

P & Z (Role Change)- 1 

 

Terminations/Resignations 

Administration (HR)- 1 

Fire Rescue- 1 

Jail- 7 

P&Z- 1 

Public Works – 1 

Recreation-1  

Sheriff – 1 

 

Total Employees = 155 

Full-time = 108 

Part-time = 47 

 

 

 

Upcoming Board Appointments Needed: 

Joint Development Authority -1 (Chairman Jernigan term expires December 31st) 

Jasper County Recreation Board - 1 

 

Item 10: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 

 



The previously scheduled Work Session that is scheduled for January 12th was changed to a Called Meeting. A 

tentative Work Session was scheduled for December 29th to discuss the Impact Fee percentages.  

 

County Attorney Items: None 

 

County Manager Update:  

 

Executive Session: Commissioner Ledford motioned to enter Executive Session at 7:49 pm for personnel. 

Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to exit Executive Session at 9:30p.m.  Commissioner Henry seconded the 

motion, passed unanimously.  

 

Adjourn: Commissioner Henry motioned to adjourn the meeting at 9:30 p.m. Commissioner Ledford seconded 

the motion, passed unanimously. 

 

___________________________      ___________________________ 

Don Jernigan, Chairman       Sheila Belcher, Interim Clerk 

  



  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

December 29, 2023 

9:00 A.M. 
 

Chairman Jernigan called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

 

 

Commissioners Present: Don Jernigan-Chairman, Sheila Jones-Vice Chairman; Bruce Henry; Steven Ledford. 

Staff Present:  Mike Benton, County Manager, Sheila Belcher, Interim County Clerk, Larissa Ruark, Chief 

Accounting Officer 

 

 

Work Session: 

1. Capital Improvements Element Update: 

 

The Board of Commissioners discussed the Impact Fees. Mr. Benton gave a background on the Impact Fees and 

how they can be used including some projects that have been completed in the past. Mr. Benton stated that the 

DCA has to approve Impact fees through methodology. The board had much discussion and came to an agreement 

on suggestions of how to structure the impact fees.  

 

The Work Session was adjourned at 10:09 a.m.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Don Jernigan, Chairman 

 

 

___________________________ 

Sheila Belcher, Clerk 

  



Public Hearing:   

 

Date:   January 8, 2024 

 

Subject: 2023 Capital Improvements Element Update  

 

 

Summary:  

The Jasper County Board of Commissioners will conduct a Public Hearing on the following item on 
January 8, 2024 beginning at 6:00 P.M. in the Commissioner's Meeting Room, Suite 16, located in the 
Courthouse at 126 W. Greene Street, Monticello, GA 31064. 

A Public Hearing will be held for an update of the FY 2023 Capital Improvements Element (CIE) 

of Jasper County's Development Impact Fee Program as required annually by the Department 

of Community Affairs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  













Business Item 1: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:   January 8, 2024 

 

Subject: 2023 Capital Improvements Element Update 

  

 

 

Summary:  

 

A Work Session was held on December 29, 2023 to review and discuss updates to the CIE Reports. 

 

Staff has incorporated changes and prepared for Board review a preliminary draft of an annual update to the 

Capital Improvements Element for FY 2023 in accordance with the Development Impact Fee Compliance 

Requirements established by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs.  

 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

The Georgia Department of Community Affairs requires Counties that participate in the Impact Fee Program to 

submit an annual update of the Capital Improvements Element and Short Term Work Program. NEGRC 

provides an initial review and then submits to the DCA for State review. 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion:  

Approve Resolution # 2024-0103-1 authorizing the Draft Update of the Annual Capital Improvements Element 

FY 2023 be submitted to the Northeast Georgia Regional Commission for review and then forwarded to the 

DCA for State review. 

 

  



JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

RESOLUTION No.  2024-0103-1 

 

Annual Update of the Capital Improvements Element for FY 2023 
 

WHEREAS, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners has prepared an annual update to the 

Capital Improvements Element for FY 2023; and  

WHEREAS, the annual update of the Capital Improvements Element was prepared in accordance 

with the Development Impact Fee Compliance Requirements established by the Georgia 

Department of Community Affairs, and a Public Hearing was held on January 8, 2024 at the Jasper 

County Courthouse, BOC Commissioners Meeting Room in Monticello, Georgia;  

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, that the Jasper County Board of Commissioners does hereby 

submit the annual update of the Capital Improvements Element to the Northeast Georgia Regional 

Commission for review, as per the requirements of the Georgia Planning Act of 1989.  

 

Adopted this ___day of ___________.  

 

 

JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

BY: 

 ________________________________________  

Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 __________________________________________ 

County Clerk 



Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Presentations 

 

 

Stanton Springs Update Provided by the Joint Development Authority. 

 

  



Appointments – Item 2: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:  January 8, 2024 

 

Subject:   Appointment of Chairman 

 

Summary: 

The County Charter states in Section 1 C that: the board of commissioners shall, at its first meeting in January, 

elect a chairman from among its membership to serve for a one year term. 

 

Background: 

Same as Above 

 

Cost: None 

 

Recommended Motion:  

Board Discretion 

 

  



 

Appointments – Item 3: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:  January 8, 2024 

 

Subject:   Appointment of Vice-Chairman 

 

Summary: 

The County Charter states in Section 1 C that: the board of commissioners shall, at its first meeting in January, 

elect a vice-chairman from among its membership to serve for a one year term. 

 

Background: 

Same as Above 

 

Cost: None 

 

Recommended Motion:  

Board Discretion 

 

  



Appointments – Item 4: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:  January 8, 2024 

 

Subject:   Appointment of County Attorney 

 

Summary: 

The County Attorney Appointment is done at the first meeting each year for the attorney to serve for a one year 

term.   

 

Background: 

 

 

Cost: None 

 

Recommended Motion:  

  



Appointments – Item 5: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:  January 8, 2024 

 

Subject:   Appointment of County Clerk 

 

Summary: 

The Board of Commissioners needs to make a designation of County Clerk to serve for a one year term. 

 

Staff recommends appointing Sheila Belcher as County Clerk. 

 

 

Background: 

 

 

Cost:  

 

Recommended Motion:  

Appoint Sheila Belcher as County Clerk for 2024. 

 

 

  



Business Item 6:  

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:   January 8, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Reform and Improve Mental Health Services Resolution Recommended by ACCG 

   

 

 

Summary:  

ACCG is encouraging 100 % participation of all Georgia counties to adopt a resolution urging Governor 

Kemp and the Georgia General Assembly to continue efforts to reform and improve mental health 

services for the citizens of Georgia. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Background:  

ACCG is asking for the Mental Health resolution to be signed. The original resolution has been 

modified. An ACCG representative will be in attendance in an effort to provide additional background 

regarding the modified resolution.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Authorize Chairman to sign Resolution #2024-0108-4 urging Governor Kemp 

and the Georgia General Assembly to continue efforts to reform and improve mental health services for 

the citizens of Georgia. 

 



RESOLUTION 2024-0108-4 

RESOLUTION URGING THE CONTINUATION OF EFFORTS TO REFORM AND 

IMPROVE MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES FOR THE CITIZENS OF GEORGIA 

 

WHEREAS, being the constitutional level of government closest to their constituents, Georgia 

counties are on the front lines of responding to mental health issues within the community; and 

WHEREAS, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners supports efforts to provide every 

citizen in need with accessible, affordable, and adequate mental health services; and   

WHEREAS, despite previous legislation and other efforts by the State of Georgia, the Jasper 

County Board of Commissioners recognizes there is still a tremendous amount of work needed 

for those in need in Jasper County to receive adequate healthcare for mental health and substance 

abuse disorders;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

reaffirms its commitment to helping reform and improve mental health services for its citizens.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Jasper County Board of Commissioners urges the 

State of Georgia to enhance access to vital mental health services. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners is directed to 

provide an executed copy of this Resolution to the Association County Commissioners of 

Georgia. 

SO RESOLVED, this _______ day of __________________, 2023. 

 JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

       By:   ______________________________________ 

William “Don” Jernigan, Chairman 

ATTEST:        ______________________________________ 

     Shelia Belcher, Clerk of the Commission 



Business Item 7: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Planning and Zoning 

 

 

Date:   January 8, 2024 

 

 

Subject:   2024 Turtle Cove POA’s Alcohol License 

   

 

 

Summary:  

Extend Turtle Cove POA’s 2023 Alcohol License to February 6, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

 

Background:  

A communications error between Planning and Zoning department and the Monticello News resulted in 

advertising the 2024 Turtle Cove POA’s Alcohol license applicants name in error. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion:  

Motion to extend Turtle Cove POA 2023 Alcohol License till February 6, 2024. 

 

 

 

 



Business Item 8: 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Roads and Bridges 

 

Date:   January 8, 2024 

 

 

Subject: No Thru Trucks Signage on County Roads for Installation on State Routes 

   

 

 

Summary:  

 

Discussion needed regarding making an additional request to GDOT to allow County No Thru Trucks signage 

to be installed on GDOT ROW. 

 

 

Background: 

 

Jasper County is part of the GDOT District in Tenille Ga. 

 

Request was made to GDOT for installation of No Thru Truck signage on State Routes at certain County Road 

intersections prior to turning onto County roads. 

 

GDOT Traffic Engineer at GDOT District Office in Tenille Ga stated the following: 

Signage not allowed on GDOT ROW. 

Suggested County signage be positioned on County ROW installed at angles to allow truck traffic to see 

signage prior to turning. 

 

County NO Thru Truck signage has been observed on State ROW in other GDOT Districts. Such as in Butts 

County: 

 

State Route 16 and Higgins Road   

State Route 16 and High Falls Road/England Chapel Road 

 

 

Cost:   

 

Based on number and size of signs installed. 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 

  



This is the list of No Thru Trucks signs installed on County Roads. 

Jackson Lake Rd off SR 16 

Jackson Lake Rd off SR 212 both directions 

Jackson Lake Rd off SR 11 

Bethel Church Rd off SR 16 

Bethel Church Rd off SR 212 both directions 

Bethel Church Rd off SR 11  

Harvey Lane off SR 16 

Harvey Lane off SR 212 

Clay Rd off SR 16 

Clay Rd off SR 83 

Hodges Farm and Jackson Lake 

Hodges Farm and County Line  

Brazey Rd and Hwy 83 

Brazey Rd and Hwy 16 

Moseley Ln and Hwy 142 

Moseley Ln and Midway Rd 

 





 



Business Item 9:  

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:   January 8, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Jasper County Joint Comprehensive Plan 2023 Update - Adoption 

   

 

 

Summary:  

 

Adopt the Updated 2023 -2028 Jasper County Joint Comprehensive Plan with the cities of Monticello and 

Shady Dale, 

 

Jasper County Joint Comprehensive Plan: 

https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/fo98jiqmve9plf6wj5vup/JasperJointComp2023-

DRAFT_12.04.2023.pdf?rlkey=5mlomg5d1exdobeujpndhgcjp&dl=0 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

The Georgia General Assembly enacted House Bill 215, the Georgia Planning Act, requiring all local 

governments to prepare a comprehensive plan in accordance with the Minimum Planning Standards and 

Prcedures promulgated by the Georfia Department of Community Affairs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Motion to adopt Resolution 2024-0108-3, signifying adoption of the Updated 2023 – 2028 Jasper County Joint 

Comprehensive Plan with the cities of Monticello and Shady Dale. 

  

https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/fo98jiqmve9plf6wj5vup/JasperJointComp2023-DRAFT_12.04.2023.pdf?rlkey=5mlomg5d1exdobeujpndhgcjp&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/fo98jiqmve9plf6wj5vup/JasperJointComp2023-DRAFT_12.04.2023.pdf?rlkey=5mlomg5d1exdobeujpndhgcjp&dl=0






 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-0108-3 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the 1989 Georgia General Assembly enacted House Bill 215, the Georgia Planning Act, 

requiring all local governments to prepare a comprehensive plan in accordance with the Minimum Planning 

Standards and Procedures promulgated by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan Update for Jasper County, Georgia, was prepared in accordance 

with the Minimum Planning Standards and Procedures; and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners, that the 

Comprehensive Plan Update for Jasper County Georgia dated 2023, as approved by the Georgia Department 

Community Affairs is hereby adopted, and furthermore, that the Northeast Georgia Regional Commission shall 

be notified of said adoption within seven (7) days of the adoption of this resolution. 

 
 
 

Adopted this 8th day of January, 2024 

 

 

 

Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

Jasper County Board of Commissioners, Chairman 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Clerk 



Business Item 10: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:   January 8, 2024 

 

 

Subject: FY 2024 CIE Update, Scope of Work and Timeline 

   

Summary:  

 

Discussion requested for the following: 

 

Changes to the Public Facility Allocation Percentages as Discussed during a December 29, 2023 Work 

Session. 

Change Library Allocation from 2% to 1% 

Change 911 Authority Allocation from 18% to 15% 

Change Admin Allocation from 2% to 0% 

Change Fire Allocation from 19% to 25% 

 

Fire Allocation Further Allocated by the Following: 

Equipment Portion to be set at 15% 

Buildings Portion to be set at 10% 

 

Review the Residentail Impact Fee Dollar Amounts 

Current Impact Fee for Residential Construction is $1376.70 

Changing the Fee Amount Requires Development of a Methodology Report 

 

Review Commercial and Industrial Construction Impact Fee Ordinance 

Impact Fee Schedule 

Retail and Commercial Exemption Policy 

 

General Review of Jasper County’s Impact Fee Ordinance 

 

Background:  

Work Session held on December 29 to discuss Impact Fees. 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Disctetion 



Public Facility Library Parks Fire E911 Admin Roads &Bridges Animal Control Total
Allocation Percentage 2% 20% 19% 18% 2% 22% 17% 100%
Service Area Countywide Countywide Countywide Countywide Countywide Countywide

Impact Fee Balance:
6/30/2023 4,292.71         209,979.09     32,217.49       143,731.41     15,310.04       42,449.31       69,512.89       517,492.94     

Impact Fees Collected:
7/1/2023 thru 6/30/2024 1,735.02         17,345.79       16,478.91       15,612.03       1,725.79         19,080.81       14,744.52       86,722.87       

Accrued Interest 138.74             1,387.44         1,318.06         1,248.69         138.74             1,526.18         1,179.32         6,937.18         
Subtotal: Fee Accounts 6,166.48         228,712.32     50,014.46       160,592.13     17,174.58       63,056.30       85,436.73       611,152.99     

Impact Fees Refunds
Expenditures  -                     (60.00)              -                   -                   (60.00)              
Impact Fee Balance:

6/30/2024 6,166.48         228,712.32     50,014.46       160,592.13     17,114.58       63,056.30       85,436.73       611,092.99     

Reconciled to Bank Balance @ 11.30.23 

Less: Actual Expenditures
8 ft Grader Box Blade Dirt Dog - Public Works (2,850.00)        (2,850.00)        

2023 Ford F150 Supercab w/ 8 ft bed - Animal Control (49,220.00)      (49,220.00)      
Ballfield Lights - Recreation (4,994.31)        (4,994.31)        

2023 F150 Truck - Public Works (36,675.00)      (36,675.00)      
Less: Committed Expenditures FY 23

Recorder - 911 (24,130.00)      (24,130.00)      
Sprinkler System Repair and Upgrade - Recreation (14,000.00)      (14,000.00)      

8 New Dugouts - Recreation (70,000.00)      (70,000.00)      
Pavilion Shelter Top - Sands Dr Park (19,000.00)      (19,000.00)      

Three Commercial Park Benches - Sands Dr Park (3,171.00)        (3,171.00)        
Six Commercial Picnic Tables - Sands Dr Park (8,820.00)        (8,820.00)        

Less: Committed Expenditures FY 24
Edmunds Gov Tech Finance Super Suite - Finance (15,310.04)      (15,310.04)      

Aluminum Dog Box - Animal Control (1,155.00)        (1,155.00)        
Emergency Medical Dispatch and Security/Access System (55,731.09)      (55,731.09)      

Remaining Available 11.30.23 6,166.48         108,727.01     50,014.46       80,731.04       1,804.54         23,531.30       35,061.73       306,036.55     

Jasper County BOC
Impact Fee Fund

Annual Impact Fee Financial Report
Fiscal Year 2024



DRAFT
1/8/2024

Public Facility Library Parks Fire E911 Admin Roads &Bridges Animal Control Total
Allocation Percentage 1% 20% 25% 15% 0% 22% 17% 100%
Service Area Countywide Countywide Countywide Countywide Countywide Countywide

Impact Fee Balance:
6/30/2023 4,292.71          209,979.09     32,217.49       143,731.41     15,310.04       42,449.31       69,512.89       517,492.94     

Impact Fees Collected:
7/1/2023 thru 6/30/2024 867.23             17,344.57       21,680.72       13,008.43       19,079.03       14,742.89       86,722.87       

Accrued Interest 69.37               1,387.44          1,734.30          1,040.58          -                   1,526.18          1,179.32          6,937.18          
Subtotal: Fee Accounts 5,229.31          228,711.10     55,632.50       157,780.42     15,310.04       63,054.52       85,435.10       611,152.99     

Impact Fees Refunds
Expenditures  -                     (60.00)              -                   -                   (60.00)              
Impact Fee Balance:

6/30/2024 5,229.31         228,711.10     55,632.50       157,780.42     15,250.04       63,054.52       85,435.10       611,092.99     
Reconciled to Bank Balance @ 11.30.23 

Less: Actual Expenditures
8 ft Grader Box Blade Dirt Dog - Public Works (2,850.00)        (2,850.00)        

2023 Ford F150 Supercab w/ 8 ft bed - Animal Control (49,220.00)      (49,220.00)      
Ballfield Lights - Recreation (4,994.31)        (4,994.31)        

2023 F150 Truck - Public Works (36,675.00)      (36,675.00)      
Less: Committed Expenditures FY 23

Recorder - 911 (24,130.00)      (24,130.00)      
Sprinkler System Repair and Upgrade - Recreation (14,000.00)      (14,000.00)      

8 New Dugouts - Recreation (70,000.00)      (70,000.00)      
Pavilion Shelter Top - Sands Dr Park (19,000.00)      (19,000.00)      

Three Commercial Park Benches - Sands Dr Park (3,171.00)        (3,171.00)        
Six Commercial Picnic Tables - Sands Dr Park (8,820.00)        (8,820.00)        

Less: Committed Expenditures FY 24
Edmunds Gov Tech Finance Super Suite - Finance (15,250.04)      (15,250.04)      

Aluminum Dog Box - Animal Control (1,155.00)        (1,155.00)        
Emergency Medical Dispatch and Security/Access System (55,731.09)      (55,731.09)      

Remaining Available 11.30.23 5,229.31          108,725.79     55,632.50       77,919.33       0.00                 23,529.52       35,060.10       306,096.55     

Internal Allocations for Fire:
Building  - 15% 33,379.50       
Equipment - 10% 22,253.00       
Grand Total Fire - 25% 55,632.50       

Jasper County BOC
Impact Fee Fund

Annual Impact Fee Financial Report
Fiscal Year 2024

















































Business – Item 11 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Election 

 

Date:  January 8, 2024 

 

Subject:   Set Qualifying Fees for 2024 Elections 

 

Summary: 

Public Notice stating the Qualifying Fees and the Election Dates need to be published prior to 

February 1st, 2024 to be pursuant to O.C.G.A §21-2-131(a)(1).  

 

Background: 

Fees as adopted: 

 

Office Fee 

Sheriff $1,927.66 

Clerk of Superior Court $1,660.34 

Tax Commissioner $1,660.34 

Probate Judge $1,660.34 

Chief Magistrate   $1,633.55 

County Commissioner $  216.00 

Board of Education $  180.00 

Coroner $    72.00 

Surveyor $    10.00 

 

Qualifying Dates: 

 

March 4, 2024 at 9:00 A.M. – March 8, 2024 at 12:00 Noon 

 

1. Election dates for 2024 County Elections established as follows: 

 

 

2024 General Primary – May 21, 2024 

2024 General Election – November 5, 2024 

 

Cost: None 

 

Recommended Motion:  

 

Approve Resolution #2024-0108-2 setting the Qualifying Fee Schedule for advertisement prior 

to February 1, 2024. 

 



Resolution #2024-0108-2 

 

A RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF JASPER COUNTY 

SETTING QUALIFYING FEES FOR THE 2024 ELECTION AND AUTHORIZING 

PUBLICATION OF SAME 

WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 21-2-131 requires the governing authority of each county, not 

later than February 1 of any year in which a general primary, nonpartisan election, or general 

election is to be held, to fix and publish a qualifying fee for each county office to be filled in the 

upcoming primary or election; and 

 

WHEREAS, a general primary, nonpartisan election, and general election are scheduled 

to be held in 2024; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Jasper 

County, as the governing authority of Jasper County, does hereby set qualifying fees for candidates 

for the county offices to be elected in 2024 as set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk is authorized and directed to 

publish the list of qualifying fees in accordance with the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 21-2-131 no 

later than February 1, 2024. 

 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted and made effective this 8th day of January, 2024. 

 

 

JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

By:  ______________________________________ 

Chairman 

Attest:  _________________________________ 

County Clerk



EXHIBIT A 

2024 QUALIFYING FEES 

 

Office Fee 

Sheriff $1,927.66 

Clerk of Superior Court $1,660.34 

Tax Commissioner $1,660.34 

Probate Judge $1,660.34 

Chief Magistrate   $1,693.55 

County Commissioner $  216.00 

Board of Education $  180.00 

Coroner $    72.00 

Surveyor $    10.00 

 

 

 
 



New Business – Item 12: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Finance 

 

Date:    January 8, 2024 

 

Subject: Open New Bank Account for the 2024 SPLOST Funds 

  

 

Summary:  

 

Board approval requested for the Finance Department to facilitate opening Bank Account at Bank of Monticello 

for use in deposit of the 2024 SPLOST funds. 

 

 

 

Background: 

 

 On March 21, 2023, a referendum was held on the question of a 1% special purpose local option sales tax 

(SPLOST) being imposed in Jasper County and was approved by the voters. 

 

The tax is projected to begin April 1, 2024, with an expiration date of March 31, 2030. 

 

 

 

 

Cost: 

 

None 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion(s): 

 

Motion to approve opening bank account at the Bank of Monticello for deposit of 2024 SPLOST funds from the 

Georgia Department of Revenue. 

  





Business Item 13:  

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:   January 8, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 

   

 

 

Summary:  

 

Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 

 


